
SPENCER COUNTY FISCAL COURT
Monday, September 17, 2012
Fiscal Court Meeting Room, 28 East Main Street

A. Opening Prayer
Magistrate Hobert Judd led the Court in prayer before Court began.

B. Pledge of Allegiance
Pledge of Allegiance to the American flag.

C. Call to order by County Judge Executive, Bill Karrer
D. Roll call by County Clerk, Lynn Hesselbrock
E. Review and approval of the minutes from the September 5, 2012 Fiscal Court 

Meeting.
 On the motion of Esq. Judd, seconded by Esq. Goodlett, with all members 

of the Court present voting “Aye”, it is hereby ordered to approve the 
minutes of the September 5th, Fiscal Court meeting with corrections.

F. Communications from citizens ***3 minute limit***
Mr. Lawrence Trageser came before the Court to say that he had come before the 
Court in spring of 2012 to talk about the Administrative Code. He said that the 
Sheriff and the County Clerk’s Administrative Code had not been placed in the 
County’s Administrative Code. He also stated that on August 15, 2011 he brought 
up the fact that in the County Administrative Code County owned vehicles were 
mentioned and that it stated that except with permission, the vehicles were to 
remain parked on County property when not in use for official business. He stated 
that Fiscal Court did not have Administrative Codes from the Sheriff or the Clerk. 
“Why?” “Clerk Hesselbrock has one that she has simply gotten from Anderson 
County and put her name on it. And yet I find that Magistrate Davis is having to 
put an Open Records request in to get that document and then only to have Clerk 
Hesselbrock scold him and say the request has to go to Ruth Hollan’s office. And 
then to add insult to the ignor…indignity, of it, she wants another $30.00 for it at .
50 cents a copy. Sheriff Stump said in this Court, he told Magistrate Davis that 
anytime he wanted it, it was ready, but when Magistrate Davis went to pick it up, 
Buddy said that there were some spelling errors and, oh by the way, you need to 
go to the County Attorney’s office and sign a confidentially agreement. In 2011, I 
got his Administrative Code. Lawrence Trageser didn’t have to sign jack.”  

Ms. Evie McKemie came before the Court to offer her assistance with cleaning up 
tires along Salt River. She said she was willing to do whatever was necessary to 
help out.

G. Communications from County Judge Executive
1. The Judge stated that the Library had submitted its year-end financial report 
and that it was on file in the Judge’s office as well as in the Clerk’s office.

pg. 1



2. The Judge mentioned the upcoming Oktoberfest which will be held on the 
first Saturday in October which will be October 6th. He said that Squire Goodlett 
was looking into the Trolley for officials to ride on during the parade and also 
mentioned taking up a collection to buy candy to throw out to the children. No 
action was taken.

H. Communications/reports from Members, Other Offices, and Committees.
1. EMS:
1a. Committee report on privatization.
Esq. Moody stated that he had spoke with Mr. Steve Colsten. He said that they 
should have their evaluation complete in the next couple of days. Judge Karrer 
said that he did not know who Steve Colsten was, and Esq. Moody explained that 
Mr. Austin was with Yellow Ambulance. The Judge asked if the committee had 
met yet. Esq. Moody responded that they had not; that they had just submitted 
information to one company to get an idea what information was needed so 
they could get a report, to become familiar with the whole situation. Esq. Davis 
said “well, that’s not all that’s been done.” Esq. Moody said “that’s the main 
things that we’ve done to get prepared.” He then asked if Esq. Davis had 
anything to add. Esq. Davis replied “we’ve also got the proposal from Oldham 
County and looked at theirs, and what to ask for it’s about that thick.” Esq. 
Moody said “and we had one from Daviess County also.” Esq. Moody said, “So 
nothing really to report at this moment.”
1b. EMS residence construction.

 On the motion of Judge Executive Karrer, seconded by Esq. Goodlett, with 
all members of the Court present voting “Aye”, it is hereby ordered to 
take the issue of the EMS residence construction off the table.

The Judge Executive said that there had been much discussion on the subject, but 
no formal action had been taken thus far. He said that the issue had been on the 
table for the last two meetings. He remarked that where the discussion had left 
off was on the different bid proposals, and that the committee had 
recommended that Fiscal Court accept the bid for $249,587.52 from Eagle 
Construction and the Kehne Company.

 On the motion of Judge Executive Karrer, seconded by Esq. Cheek, with 
Esq. Moody, Esq. Judd, Esq. Davis voting “Nay” and Esq. Goodlett, Esq. 
Cheek and Judge Executive Karrer voting “Aye”, the motion failed.

1c. Extension Building.

The Judge said that the last time this issue had been discussed; it had also ended 
in a tie vote. He said he would make a motion; when Esq. Davis said “point of 
order Judge”. “Do you have an appraisal on this building?” The Judge replied that 
he did not. Esq. Davis responded “Kentucky State law says that you cannot pay 
more than fair market value. If we don’t have an appraisal then we don’t know 
what’s fair market value. And you have to use a Kentucky certified appraiser.” 
County Attorney Hollan stated “actually, the KRS says that if you are going to 

pg. 2



purchase property for more than $40,000.00 or $250,000.00 rather, you have to 
have an appraisal. But he didn’t say what his motion is. Esq. Davis said “that’s 
true.” The Judge said “my motion is that we enter into negotiations with the 
Extension Service to purchase that building. Esq. Davis makes a good point. Part 
of that negotiation would be to establish the value of the building and bring it 
back to Fiscal Court once those negotiations are complete for final action.” Esq. 
Davis said to County Attorney Hollan “so you know what his motion was going to 
be?” Attorney Hollan said “no”. Esq. Moody said “so this motion is to take it off 
the table?” The Judge responded “no, it wasn’t on the table, I made a motion that 
we enter into discussions.” Esq. Davis said loudly “no, I’m not- don’t go accusing 
me of nothing you don’t know what you’re talking about. I’m sick of you all 
accusing me of stuff.” The Judge called Esq. Davis out of order. Esq. Davis then 
said to County Attorney Hollan “I don’t care if you sit there or not” as Attorney 
Hollan got up to leave the table. Ms. Hollan stated “I will not sit in a Courtroom 
with him when he acts like this.” Esq. Davis said “don’t go accusing people of stuff 
and I won’t act like this.” The County Judge again called Esq. Davis out of order. 
Esq. Davis replied “well then you need to call people out of order when they 
accuse me of things and tell me I’m taking law from Lawrence Trageser.” The 
Judge repeated “You are out of order.” Esq. Davis said “and did you hear what I 
said?” The Judge replied “yes I did, and I say that you are out of order and I 
continue to say that.” Esq. Davis said “and I continue to state mine”. Esq. Moody 
then said “what’s the purpose of buying the building and the Judge replied that 
his intent had not changed- the building was going to be empty and that there 
had been ongoing discussion on who owned what. He said he would like to see it 
used for the Sheriff’s Department. He ended by saying he thought the taxpayers 
were better served if the County owned the building and it was used for the 
Sheriff’s Department.
Esq. Judd stated that originally, it was discussed to use the building for EMS with 
some modifications. “But here we’re looking at building another $250,000.00 
structure. Here we are looking at tying up a half a million dollars.” The Judge said 
“at this point in time we’ve done nothing for EMS. And to purchase that building 
for $250,000.00 and trying to make it work is not the ideal situation for EMS. The 
proposal we just tied our vote on was a much better situation for EMS. Esq. 
Moody said “that most likely if we were to start building the building for EMS it 
would be  $250,000.00 plus change orders also, because it’s not a very concise 
bid, so there’s gonna be changes come along on that also, most likely.”
Discussion continued about building versus buying the Extension Building. Esq. 
Davis said “now the Extension Building, they can’t sell that for commercial use, 
can they?” Esq. Judd stated that the deed specified that is correct, that it’s to be 
used only for an Extension Office. The Judge said “we have discussed that here 
before and we may have one opinion while the Extension Service has another. 
Esq. Davis said “however, if they bought the land from us, they could do whatever 
they wanted with it.” The Judge said “that’s true.” Esq. Davis said “then we 
wouldn’t be in that pickle of who owns the land, who owns the building.” The 

pg. 3



Judge said that he had made the motion and wanted to know if there was a 
second. Esq. Judd seconded the motion. Esq. Goodlett asked Esq. Judd “if we 
were to scratch the EMS building, would you vote to convert the Extension Office 
into an EMS building?” Esq. Judd replied “the Judge just said it wouldn’t work, 
why would we vote for something that wouldn’t work?” Esq. Goodlett 
commented “we’re discussing.” Esq. Moody said that there had been an issue 
with one government entity purchasing a building from another government 
entity.” Esq. Judd said “they’re telling us its okay.”  Discussion continued about 
the legality of the purchase with the consensus that it was permissible. Esq. Judd 
said “I could probably support that Squire Goodlett, but not both of them.” Esq. 
Goodlett said “it’s plain to see we are going nowhere, either way. Without calling 
for a vote, how does the rest of the Court feel about that?”  The Judge said that 
the vote would tell how the Court felt. He mentioned that the votes had ended in 
ties before and Esq. Davis said “I’ll answer your question, Esq. Goodlett. If I have 
to pick between the two, it’s gonna be build a new one.” Discussion continued on 
building a new structure. Esq. Goodlett said “it’s just been delay after delay. I feel 
that we need to move on something.” Esq. Judd asked Esq. Goodlett “do you 
think its right to the people of Spencer County to obligate a half a million 
dollars?” Esq. Goodlett said that “   I’ve seen the time when it certainly wouldn’t 
have been right. Our county is in a better position today than what we have been 
in the past,” adding he felt that something needed to be done soon. Esq. Judd 
called “question on the motion.” 

 On the motion of Judge Karrer, seconded by Esq. Judd, with Esq. Davis, 
Esq. Judd, Esq. Moody and Esq. Goodlett voting “Nay” and Judge Karrer 
and Esq. Cheek voting “Aye”, the motion fails to enter into negotiations 
with the Extension Service to purchase the Extension Building. 

 On the motion of Judge Karrer, seconded by Esq. Judd, with Esq. Cheek, 
Esq. Moody, Esq. Davis voting “Nay”, and Judge Karrer, Esq. Goodlett and 
Esq. Judd voting “Aye”, motion fails to reconsider the earlier tie vote to 
construct a new EMS building.

Esq. Moody said that he thought that the bid was not specific enough for the 
Court to make a decision on constructing a new building. 

1d. Supplies request for Quadmed.

pg. 4



 On the motion of Esq. Moody, seconded by Esq. Cheek, with all members of 
the Court present voting “Aye”, it is hereby ordered to approve the purchase 
of the requested EMS supplies.

pg. 5



2. Floodwall report from Bobby Smith, the current Floodwall Commissioner.
Mr. Smith handed out binders with the Floodwall report to members of Fiscal 
Court for their review. Mr. Smith mentioned a letter from the Corps of Engineers 
dated January 10, 2011, from an inspection which took place on November 3, 
2009,  which said the Floodwall inspection rating was “minimal acceptable”. He 
said that 2 years and 8 months later, we were no better off. Mr. Smith said it was 
his understanding that the Corps of Engineers was going to give the Floodwall an 
unacceptable rating which might result in the loss of funds from FEMA, RIP, and 
insurance companies.  Mr. Smith stated that he had toured the Floodwall with 
others. He said that he thought that the Floodwall was not high on the priority list 
because it only protected 600 people, and a failure of the floodwall would have 
the least impact. He offered to work for half cash and half voucher for his 
employees to perform the work necessary. He cited some Corps suggestions, and 
said the Floodwall needed to be revitalized. Esq. Woodie Cheek volunteered to be 
part of an Advisory Committee for the Floodwall. Ms. Sandy Verbeck had offered 
her services to help with the financial aspects. He mentioned other possible 
entities who might be helpful on a committee of some kind.

3. Parks parking lot sealed bid results.

There were 3 bids submitted. One from American Paving was the lowest. TSI and 
Louisville Paving also submitted bids.  

pg. 6



 On the motion of Esq. Davis, seconded by Esq. Cheek, with all members of the 
Court present voting “Aye”, it is hereby ordered to award the paving contract 
for Waterford and Ray Jewell Park to American Paving for the amount of 
$7900.00.

pg. 7



4. Clerk’s order request for vehicle registration sleeves, 2500 at $0.51 each for a 
total of $1275.00.

 On the motion of Esq. Judd, seconded by Esq. Cheek, with all members of the 
Court present voting “Aye”, it is hereby ordered to approve the Clerk’s order 
request for vehicle registration sleeves for a total price of @1275.00.

5. Solid Waste Report.
Esq. Judd stated that there was nothing to report. 

6. Jailer report.
Reimbursement for meals for prisoners.

pg. 8



 On the motion of Esq. Davis, seconded by Esq. Cheek, with all members of the 
Court present voting “Aye”, it is hereby ordered to reimburse Jailer Herndon 
$85.00 for meals for prisoners.

7. Sheriff’s report for July and August.

pg. 9



No action taken. Informational only.

pg. 10



8. Carcass disposal report for August.

pg. 11



Discussion ensued concerning the number of dead animals per farm, noting some 
farms had a higher number of dead animals than others. No action taken. 
Informational only.

 Esq. Davis said “under KRS 67.710 Powers and Duties of the County Judge Executive. 
Now it’s my understanding and I believe it’s the understanding of the rest of the 
Magistrates on this Court that you believe that you can hire, or that you can fire, 
remove any County employee without Fiscal Courts approval. The Judge replied 
“department heads” Esq. Davis replied “department heads?” The Judge stated “but 
I’m still going to bring it here when I do that.” Esq. Davis said “cause subsection 7 
under 67.710, Powers and Duties of the County Judge Executive says the “Judge 
exercises the approval of Fiscal Court with the authority to appoint, supervise, 
suspend or remove County personnel unless otherwise provided for by state law. And 
I think that includes department heads. I want to bring that to your attention. You 
might want to check that out.” The Judge replied “okay”. Esq. Davis said “cause this 
has already been done, and I believe that’s the understanding and you know, again, 
it’s already been said I asked last time, I’ve been asking for a long time for appendix 
“B” and “C” in my Adnim Code. And last time I asked the Sheriff “yeah, it’s ready, 
come get it, it’s all ready, have a bow on it. But when I go over there to get it, “naw, 
we ain’t got it”. “When you gonna have it?” “I don’t know.” So the next day I go in 
there with an Open Records Request- I’ve never filed an Open Records Request, but, I 
really don’t think Open Records Requests do that much because it seems to me they 
got a loophole in that too. Just respond within three days. It doesn’t really mean you 
have to give me anything. Then I get a response from him that he’ll have it ready by 
October 1st. A mere copy, stick a disc in a   computer and copy off 354 pages and push 
a button and walk away. But it’s gonna take until October 1st to do this. Now, Ms. 
Hasselbrock, I’ve been asking her for hers forever, but she’s working on it, and 
working on it, and working on it. Well then I find out that the last Clerk’s was just 
gone, then I find out no, they’re still going by that. I thought OK, that’ll be fine, that 
suits me, as long as I have one. So I turned in an Open Records Request to her. Well 
yeah, I can have it.. $0.50 a copy. A couple of weeks ago, I go to Planning and Zoning 
to get a copy of this Fiscal Court that we had. I would think this is part of the tools for 
our job. I’m told that they were told I have to fill out an Open Records Request. Yeah, 
this is unreal that I continue to be hindered this way. I mean how much are we going 
to start being charged for our book. I mean we make a lot of money per month at this 
job. I don’t understand. I just don’t understand. It’s comical, it really is. And that’s all I 
have. The Judge said “okay”. Esq. Davis then said, and Judge, I even called you about 
that, and you seem to be trying to find something in there to prove that I would 
indeed have to pay $0.50 a sheet, when in the back of my Admin Code, it has the 
appendix- appendix “A” is the Ethics Code, we have that. “D” is EMS, we have that, 
but almost two years now and we still don’t have the Clerk or the Sheriff. I don’t 
know what the big deal is here. What exactly they’re afraid of or what they’re doing. 
And why we can’t have what we’re supposed to have to do our job. And why I’ve got 

pg. 12



to fill out an Open Records Request to get a copy of Fiscal Court. I want to start 
signing something or perhaps charge for my likeness on this film, is that what it’s 
coming to?  And I charge a lot. The Judge said “I can tell you that as far as our Admin 
Code and I think I read it to you, I don’t know the page, and that they shall have their 
SOPs in their offices. They have apparently chosen not to include their SOPs by 
reference to our Admin Code, they are separate Constitutional offices, we can’t make 
them do that, we can’t tell them what they can and cannot charge you as far as Open 
Records copies are concerned. I can take care of, and I didn’t know that was 
happening, if you’re asking for a request from Planning and Zoning, I can take care of 
that. Esq. Davis said “well finally the Administrator came out, Julie, and said no, he 
doesn’t have to. Now Mike Moody had to last time. The Judge asked Esq. Moody 
“didn’t I get your money back from that?”  Esq.  Davis said “no, Open Records 
Request.”

 The Judge said, “And I will also say since you’re talking about Open Records here, 
there was an appeal to the Attorney General’s office concerning our Open Records 
procedures and the Attorney General referred back to a Kenton County case, they 
affirmed that our procedures are correct. Lawrence Trageser interjected “not 
entirely” where upon the Judge called him out of order. The Judge stated that he had 
gotten that information of Friday.
Esq. Judd said that he wanted to go back and address paragraph F on the agenda. 
Pertaining to the 3 minute limit on communications from citizens. He said he thought 
the limit should be set higher to four or possibly five minutes. He said if anyone 
abused the time limit the Judge could “use the gavel on them” and get them out of 
the Court. He said too often people come into Court to talk about issues that concern 
them, and he felt that the Court should be a “sounding board” for them. The Judge 
said he suggested that if a citizen wanted to address a specific issue,  that they ask to 
be put on the agenda so they could have more than the three minutes. He cited 
instances where people asked to be put on the agenda and was allowed longer time 
frames to express their thoughts. Esq. Davis also said he got a lot of calls from people 
who would like to speak at the Fiscal Court meetings on topics that were not on the 
agenda. The Judge said that he would think about the idea.
The Judge asked if there was anyone else who wanted to speak and the County Clerk 
said that she would like to report the excess funds for July and August. She explained 
that due to a clerical error, there was an overpayment to the State in July. This was 
corrected by a credit to the August payment. Corrected excess funds were 
$46,264.10 for the month of July and $38,726.20 for the month of August. Esq. Judd 
asked a question about excess funds and the Clerk explained that the funds were all 
receipts for the month minus the legal disbursements to all the taxing districts in the 
County such as the School Board, the Fire Board, the Extension Board, ect. The Clerk 
reminded the Squire that the fee-pooling agreement provided for the County to take 
over the personnel and operating costs of the Clerk’s office. The Judge stated that the 
amount to date was around $26,000.00 for the Clerk’s fiscal year. He also noted that 
the Clerk had opted to pay off some long term contracts which would increase excess 
funds for next year as they would not be an ongoing expenditure in the coming year.

pg. 13



 
The Clerk then said that since some members of the Court had jumped ahead to Old 
Business, she wanted to address the topic of the Clerk’s Administrative Code. She 
said “according to Spencer County Administrative Code, page 14, section 1.6 
paragraph 2 ‘The County Clerk’s personnel will be regulated by the Clerk’s 
Administrative Code, in addition to this Administrative Code. The Clerk’s 
Administrative Code shall be on file in the Clerk’s Office. And it is.” It is also a public 
record and an Open Records request is not needed to view the document.  

I. Old Business.
1. Recycling center new hire.
The Judge reported that there were currently two positions available. A new 
position would be for a supervisor to take some of the burden off of Darrell 

Herndon who currently works part time and must spend time at the Recycle Center.  
He is currently the Superintendent of Grounds. The fulltime Supervisors position is 
not currently in the Administrative Code so it will be added and be brought back to 
Court. There have been numerous applications for the positions. 

2. Admin codes from the Clerk and Sheriff.
The Judge asked Esq. Moody if he wanted to address the topic further since Esq. 

Moody wanted the item placed on the agenda. Esq. Moody said the item had been 
discussed enough already.

J. New Business.

1. Review and Approval of Bills and Transfers.

Motion to approve the paying of bills and transfers made by Esq.  Moody, seconded 
by Esq. Cheek. When the Judge asked for discussion, Esq. Davis said “Lynn 
Hasselbrock, page 2. Reimburse for admin binders, what is that?”
The Clerk responded “Administrative Code Binders.” Esq. Davis responded loudly 
“yeah, I know. What exactly is that cause you know I asked for the Admin Code and 
it’s $0.50 a page, now you want binders? That’s cute.” “No, I won’t be voting for bills 
and transfers. I mean I gotta pay $0.50 a page for this Admin Code and now she 
wants books to put it in. How much do I have to pay for that? I guess $10.60.” Esq. 
Goodlett asked where he saw that to which Esq. Davis replied “Lynn Hasselbrock, 
second page.” The Judge said “anymore discussion on the bills?” Esq. Davis said 
“Judge, can you shed a little light on this? I mean why are we paying for her Admin 
Code binders that she’s charging $0.50 a page for, and then we pay for the books to 
put them in.” The Judge said “I would suspect, and I’ll ask the Clerk, that you’re 
putting your Administrative Code for your deputies in a binder?” The Clerk responded 
in the affirmative, to which Esq. Davis replied “are they gonna have to pay for them?”
The Clerk responded “did you have to pay for yours?” Esq. Davis said “the Admin 
Code from you?” The Clerk replied “no, did you have to pay for your binder?” Esq. 
Davis said “no, but I’m sure it’s coming.”

pg. 14



 On the motion of Esq. Moody, seconded by Esq. Cheek, with all members of 
the Court present  voting “Aye”, except Esq. Davis voting “Nay”, it is hereby 
ordered to pay all bills and approve all transfers.

pg. 15



pg. 16



pg. 17



2. Zoning, Readings and recommendations.
The Judge informed the Court that there were none.

3. Paving projects with County Funds (non Flex Funds).
The Judge stated that the Flex Fund projects were also listed, but what they were 
to act on tonight were the non flex-fund projects. He mentioned Meadowview 
Subdivision which needed to have dig-out work begun immediately.

pg. 18



 On the motion of Judge Executive Karrer, seconded by Esq. Goodlett, with all 
members of Fiscal Court present voting “Aye”, it is hereby ordered to approve 
the non-flex fund road projects.

pg. 19



4. Ordinance No. 4 (2013 series) budget amendment #1, second reading.

pg. 20



 On the motion of Esq. Cheek, seconded by Esq. Moody, with all members of 
Court present voting “Aye”, it is hereby ordered to approve the second 
reading of Ordinance No. 4 (2013 series).

pg. 21



5.  Indiana bat conservation Memorandum of Agreement.

pg. 22



pg. 23



pg. 24



pg. 25



pg. 26



 On the motion of Judge Executive Karrer, seconded by Esq. Judd, with all 
members of Court present voting “Aye”, it is hereby ordered to enter into the 
Memorandum of Agreement for Indiana bat conservation.

pg. 27



6. Enforcement Code officer’s salary.
The Occupational Tax Enforcement Officers salary was set at $10.50 per hour. The 
Judge recommended increasing the Zoning Enforcement Officer’s salary to $11.00 
per hour.

 On the motion of Judge Executive Karrer, seconded by Esq. Judd, with all 
members of the Court present voting “Aye”, it is hereby ordered to increase 
the Zoning Enforcement Officer’s salary to $11.00 per hour.

7 .Oktoberfest.
The Judge explained that in the past, Fiscal Court provided the Porta lets for the 
Oktoberfest. This comes out of a “special events” budget and will cost around 
$900.00. 
 On the motion of Esq. Goodlett, seconded by Esq. Cheek, with all members of 

Court present voting “Aye”, it is hereby ordered to approve the expenditure 
for Porta lets for Oktoberfest.

Esq. Judd reminded the Court that there will be no Veteran’s Day Parade, but there 
was planning for a Memorial Service. Details will be forthcoming

It was also noted that there will be another Tire Amnesty on October 13th and 14th.

 On the motion of Esq. Goodlett, seconded by Esq. Cheek, with all members of 
the Court present voting “Aye”, it is hereby ordered to adjourn this meeting of 
the Spencer County Fiscal Court at 8:45 p.m.

pg. 28


